
 

 

ESSEX COUNTY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
MEETING OF APRIL 27, 2023, AT 7:00 P.M. 

109 CROSS STREET 
TAPPAHANNOCK, VIRGINIA 22560 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
 
Steven Laffoon –Chairman 
Stephen Walters 
Edward Haile 
Gamaliel Rose 
Ned Stephenson 
 
Also Present: 
 
Kelly McKnight – Planning and Zoning Office Manager 
 
Absent 
 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chairman Laffoon called the April 27, 2023, meeting of the Essex County Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Ms. McKnight called the roll. A quorum was met. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Chairman Laffoon asked if there were questions on the minutes from the January 26, 2023, Board of 
Zoning Appeals. The motion was made and seconded. AYES: 5 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 0  
 
Public Comments 
 
None. 
 
Public Hearings 
 
V2300002 – Mark Chinn 
 
Mr. Hodges stated they have an application for 145 Cold Cheer Dr to allow for a 4’ right interior-side 
setback variance. The purpose of this variance is to replace an existing 36’ x 12’ deck with a 36’ x 15’ 
sunporch. The sun porch will increase the existing footprint by approximately 108 sf. The variance is for 
a 4’ interior-side variance to the 25’ interior-side setback requirement for the primary structure. The 
staff recommendation is to approve of the variance request. 



 

 

Mr. Chinn stated that just so you know the Cold Cheer Subdivision when it was originally established the 
road leading it was Cold Cheer Drive. He does not live on Cold Cheer Drive, He lives on Cold Cheer Point 
Drive which is adjacent to this large subdivision and contains 6 or 7 homes, one of which is his. If the 
police have to come and are told Cold Cheer Drive, they never find Cold Cheer Point Drive. He and his 
wife built this home in 1999-2000 and they had a deck constructed on the back. What they found out in 
the past 20 years is that in the summer months you don’t use the deck because of the heat. We decided 
that we would like to construct a screen porch and extend the width by three feet because it will make 
the whole area more livable. He was told he would need a variance because of the proximity to the 
property line between he and his neighbor. 
 
Mr. Rose asked if there was any problem with the neighbor registering a complaint? Mrs. McKnight 
stated she sent out letters to the adjacent property owner and did not get anything back. 
 
Mr. Rose also asked if the deck would have originally been about a foot over the original setback and 
this is an extension of that but when you enclose an open deck it feels smaller. So, the experience of the 
surface of the deck that would be enclosed would be comparable. Without any objection from the 
neighbors, I think it is a reasonable request. 
 
Mr. Walters stated he would just like the documentation to have the correct address. 
 
Mr. Haile stated that this requires a 25’ setback, that’s the new ordinance. If he had come here a year 
ago it would have been 15’. He feels in these subdivision lots when they are laid out generally, they have 
the setbacks built into these lots. He doesn’t think any of them have a 25’ setback. He has no problem 
approving this at all.  
 
Mr. Chinn has a plat that was drawn, as you face my house the left side one corner is 35’ from the 
property line and the other is 30.5’ from it. He is not sure why they didn’t make them the same.  
 
Mr. Chinn stated that the width up front is 125’. And the property slopes downward slightly. 
 
Mr. Haile asked if the screen is being put up, so they don’t get eaten up by mosquitos.  
 
Mr. Chinn stated they use the deck in the fall and spring but do not get eaten up by bugs in the summer. 
What’s unbearable is sitting out there and the sun setting, and it is so hot. 
 
The motion was made to accept the variance and seconded. AYES: 5 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 0 
 
Mr. Chinn asked if he would be receiving a letter from the county stating that this has been approved? 
 
Mr. Hodges stated that in 10 days he will receive the zoning permit that has been signed.  
 
New Business 
 
The only new business is the pamphlet that was handed out for the VCU schooling for BZA. Mr. Hodges 
will need to know who would like to attend. 
 
Mr. Haile asked if this was optional or a requirement to be on the board. 
 



 

 

Mr. Walters said it is in the bylaws. 
 
Chairman Laffoon said you go for a weekend then you work at home and go back for a final. 
 
Mr. Walters stated that in the bylaws it is recommended to have training within 2 years of appointment. 
 
Mr. Hodges stated he copied that information from the VCU website yesterday. He thought all the 
training was on weekends but will go back and verify. 
 
 
Mr. Walters stated that he has been appointed to the planning commission. It is in the bylaws that if you 
are on the BZA you cannot be on another board except one member can be on the Planning 
Commission. He has talked with David Jones who is the Chairman of the Planning Commission, and he is 
looking for him to help foster communication to get inputs from what the BZA is doing verses what the 
planning commission is doing. The planning commission is more strategic, in control of the 
comprehensive plan and from that flows down to the actual ordinance that we enforce or grant 
variances. A lot of the questions we have about why things are the way they are come out of that 
comprehensive plan. He thought he could take some time when they meet to get them up to speed on 
what the planning commission is doing. In particular there is something coming up on Tuesday, they 
meet the first Tuesday of every month. They talked a while back about LaGrange and auto recycling. On 
Tuesday, they will be hearing about Lot 11 in LaGrange that they want to rezone it from an I-1 to an I-2. 
After that they will probably come to the BZA for a variance. They are also looking at the comprehensive 
plan.  
 
Mr. Rose asked the question whether when someone applies for a variance and the setback is changed 
is that some form of taking? If a property is bought and predicates the purchase and the value of the 
purchase on some sort of elbow room and then that is subsequently reduced by official action, by 
authority changing the zoning. If that action results in a reduction in the ability to enjoy the property in 
the future that would seem to be uncompensated. How is it possible to change the zoning in something 
that adversely affects the value of the property? It’s just something he would like to learn more about.  
 
Mr. Haile stated how could he deny someone the ability to do something now that he could have done a 
year ago anyway.  
 
Chairman Laffoon stated we are here to look at and made a decision that is both agreeable to the 
County and the individual. 
 
Mr. Rose stated that by virtue of some of these incremental decisions at the local and sometimes at the 
national level. This is a taking for which you are not compensated for it. 
 
Mr. Walters stated he thinks how that is handled is typically, if he would have not done anything he 
would have still had his house, even though the setback changed, he would be in violation of the new 
ordinance. However, there is the Grandfathering, where we are not going to take it away from anyone. 
You built it the right way at the time, and you can continue to live in that envelope as long as you wish 
to but if you want to expand to a larger envelope you have to get the variance. 
 



 

 

Mr. Hodges stated that in the case of Mr. Chinn the old ordinance was a 25’ setback which did not 
change in the new ordinance. Because he was rebuilding, and we had no record of a previous variance 
he had to apply for the variance. 
 
Mr. Haile stated that this was not a case where a smaller setback allowed him to do what he wanted 
under an earlier ordinance and now he can’t because he waited too long. 
 
Mr. Hodges stated that was accurate.  
 
Mr. Haile stated that the other factor in these major subdivisions and how they are laid out is they put in 
building restriction lines. 
 
Mr. Hodges asked if they wanted all of this in the minutes. 
 
Chairman Laffoon stated we did not need it in the minutes. 
 
Mr. Hodges stated he is happy to continue the discussion but would like them to end the meeting since 
someone has to transcribe all of this. 
 
Chairman Laffoon asked if there was a motion to end the meeting.  
 
Mr. Haile stated, “let’s all go home.”  
 
Mr. Hodges stated that in the new zoning ordinance in the A1 and A2 they did change the location of an 
accessory buildings. In the old ordinance an accessory building could be 5’ from a side setback. Now it 
has to meet the same setback as the primary structure. In the old ordinance in A1 or A2 and accessory 
building had to be at the side or the rear of the primary structure, now it just has to meet the same 
setback.  
 
Chairman Laffoon asked since we keep talking about the old ordinance was that ordinance in effect in 
’99? 
 
Mr. Hodges stated he believes the original ordinance was in effect in ’81 or ’82. 
 
Mr. Stephenson said he thinks it happens all the time when zoning ordinances are changed, and it 
results in a large S for lots of people. All of a sudden lots of people’s property value is worth more. Now 
the lines moved so everyone can do more. So, it goes both ways. 
 
Mr. Walters asked if a motion needed to be made to strike the hypothetical discussion from the 
minutes. 
 
Mr. Rose stated that it was in reference to the Chinn case, but he understands it is a little far field if we 
need to strike it from the record. 
 
Mr. Walters stated that they are also supposed to approve the bylaws.  
 
Mr. Rose stated he thought they already had. 
 



 

 

Mr. Hodges apologized stating he thought they were done.  
 
Old Business 
 
Continuation of review of Bylaws 
 
Mr. Rose asked, ‘So we have not approved them?’ 
 
Mr. Walters stated that last time we had the discussion about whether or not we wanted to add 
something to it.  
 
Mr. Rose stated of course and then we decided there was nothing to add so we probably still need to 
approve them.  
 
Mr. Rose made a motion to approve the bylaws. Mr. Haile seconded. AYES: 5 NAYES: 0 ABSENT: 0 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
None. 
 
Adjourn 
 
Having no further business, the meeting of April 27, 2023, was adjourned by Chairman Laffoon. 



 

 

____________________________________   
 
Steven Laffoon, Chairman 


